

### Amendments to R3: Conclusions of the Conference on the Future of Europe: Time has come to deliver and build Europe better

Nº	Lines	Tabled by	Original text	Proposed amendment	Explanation / comment	CAS decision	AMC assessment
1	AM-1-7	Miljöparti et de gröna			Reducing national vetoes is good, totally eliminating them is not. The existence of the veto helps protect the interests of smaller member states. Despite the existence of the veto the EU has been better able to respond to the Russian invasion of the Ukrain than has the UN.		discuss
2	AM-1-8	Vihreät - De Gröna	The European Union is living in unprecedented times. It has never been more needed and it has never needed changes more than now.	<b>From line 1 to 3:</b>  The European Union is living in unprecedented times. <a href="#">#The Union</a> has never been more needed and it has never needed <a href="#">changes to change</a> more than now.	Language washing. Too many "it"s make unclear what "it" refers to.		Accept
3	AM-5-10	Die Grünen	The recent COVID-19 pandemic has cost millions of lives, deepened social injustices, and put our societies at risk. It has shown the fatal impacts of our abusive exploitation of natural resources and our short-term profit-driven	<b>Insert from line 4 to 6:</b>  The recent COVID-19 pandemic has cost millions of lives, deepened social injustices, and put <a href="#">the cohesion of</a> our societies at risk. It has shown the fatal impacts of our abusive exploitation of natural resources and our short-term profit-driven	precision		Accept
4	AM-6-1	Die Grünen	injustices, and put our societies at risk. It has shown the fatal impacts of our abusive exploitation of natural resources and our short-term profit-driven model. It has shown even more clearly the unsustainability of our trade models	<b>Insert from line 5 to 7:</b>  injustices, and put our societies at risk. It has shown the fatal impacts of our abusive exploitation of natural resources and our short-term profit-driven <a href="#">economic</a> model. It has shown even more clearly the unsustainability of our trade models	precision		Accept
5	AM-7-1	Vihreät - De Gröna	abusive exploitation of natural resources and our short-term profit-driven model. It has shown even more clearly the unsustainability of our trade models and of the underfinancing of public services. It has shown how vital European	<b>From line 6 to 8:</b>  abusive exploitation of natural resources and our short-term profit-driven model. <a href="#">#The pandemic</a> has shown even more clearly the unsustainability of our trade models and of the underfinancing of public services. It has shown how vital European	Text flows better and less "it"s.		Accept

6	AM-8-10	Vihreät - De Gröna	model. It has shown even more clearly the unsustainability of our trade models and of the underfinancing of public services. It has shown how vital European coordination and solidarity are, and how there will be no just recovery without	<b>From line 7 to 9:</b>  model. It has shown even more clearly the unsustainability of our trade models and of the underfinancing of public services. <del>It has</del> <a href="#">These past years have</a> shown how vital European coordination and solidarity are, and how there will be no just recovery without	Just suggesting to remove an "it" again.		Accept
7	AM-9-9	EGP Committee	and of the underfinancing of public services. It has shown how vital European coordination and solidarity are, and how there will be no just recovery without them.	<b>Insert from line 8 to 10:</b>  and of the underfinancing of public services. It has shown how vital European coordination and solidarity are, and how there will be no just <a href="#">and feminist</a> recovery without them.			Accept
8	AM-13-1	Die Grünen	As we were progressively recovering from this crisis, Vladimir Putin's regime conducted an aggressive, imperialistic and unjustifiable fully-fledged invasion of Ukraine – a war against a sovereign and democratic country and a war against	<b>Insert from line 12 to 14:</b>  As we were progressively recovering from this crisis, Vladimir Putin's regime conducted an <a href="#">unprovoked</a> aggressive, imperialistic and unjustifiable fully-fledged invasion of Ukraine – a war against a sovereign and democratic country and a war against	Specification, relevant to record international law perspective.		Accept
9	AM-13-2	Vihreät - De Gröna	As we were progressively recovering from this crisis, Vladimir Putin's regime conducted an aggressive, imperialistic and unjustifiable fully-fledged invasion of Ukraine – a war against a sovereign and democratic country and a war against the core values of the European Union. This war is showing at the greatest cost	<b>From line 12 to 15:</b>  As we were progressively recovering from this crisis, Vladimir Putin's regime conducted an aggressive, imperialistic and <del>unjustifiable fully-fledged invasion of Ukraine – a war against a sovereign and democratic country and a war</del> <a href="#">illegal war of aggression against Ukraine – an attack against a sovereign and democratic country and</a> against the core values of the European Union. This war is showing at the greatest cost	The unamended wording would leave room for interpretation that Putin's regime has succeeded in invading Ukraine "fully". We should not leave room for such interpretation. This war is clearly illegal and we should say that. Illegal wars are often referred to as 'wars of aggression' in international law and it makes sense to use that terminology here. Other changes are just removing the repetition of the word war. So: no change in substance, just using more a more precise expression.		Accept
10	AM-14-1	Die Grünen	conducted an aggressive, imperialistic and unjustifiable fully-fledged invasion of Ukraine – a war against a sovereign and democratic country and a war against the core values of the European Union. This war is showing at the greatest cost	<b>From line 13 to 15:</b>  conducted an aggressive, imperialistic and unjustifiable fully-fledged invasion of Ukraine – a war against a sovereign and democratic country and <del>an</del> <a href="#">unlawful</a> war against the core values of the European Union. This war is showing at the greatest cost	adding an international law perspective		proposal to withdraw if AM 9 accepted (illegal better than unlawful)
11	AM-16-1	Greens/EFA Group in the European Parliament	the core values of the European Union. This war is showing at the greatest cost the need for a Common Foreign and Defence Policy, fossil fuel independence, energy transition and a more united European Union on the global stage.	<b>Insert from line 15 to 17:</b>  the core values of the European Union. This war is showing at the greatest cost the need for a <a href="#">more effective</a> Common Foreign and Defence Policy, fossil fuel independence, energy transition and a more united European Union on the global stage.	We already have a common Foreign and Defence policy		Accept

12	AM-16-2	Partido Ecologista a Os Verdes	the core values of the European Union. This war is showing at the greatest cost the need for a Common Foreign and Defence Policy, fossil fuel independence, energy transition and a more united European Union on the global stage.	<b>From line 15 to 18:</b>  the core values of the European Union. This war is showing at the greatest cost the need for a <del>Common Foreign and Defence Policy</del> , fossil fuel <del>and other energy sources</del> , independence, energy transition, <del>food sovereignty</del> and a more united European Union on the global stage.			Discuss
13	AM-17-1	Bündnis 90/Die Grünen	the need for a Common Foreign and Defence Policy, fossil fuel independence, energy transition and a more united European Union on the global stage.  European Union. This powerful choice, that Ukrainians have repeatedly expressed, reminds us of what the European project is, how much the values on which it has been built matter, and how these need to be defended and reinforced daily.	<b>Insert from line 16 to 18:</b>  the need for a Common Foreign and Defence Policy, fossil fuel independence, energy transition and a more united <del>and stronger</del> European Union on the global stage.  <b>Insert from line 23 to 26:</b>  European Union. This powerful choice, that Ukrainians have repeatedly expressed, reminds us of what the European project is, how much the values <del>and principles</del> on which it has been built matter, and how these need to be defended and reinforced daily. <del>both inside the EU and in EU's external actions. In today's fast-changing geopolitical environment the EU needs to become strategically more autonomous to lower dependencies and defend EU citizens interests globally.</del>			Accept
14	AM-28-1	Groen	It reminds us why it is so important that the EU becomes stronger, more efficient, more united.	<b>Delete from line 26 to 28:</b>  It reminds us why it is so important that the EU becomes <del>stronger</del> , more efficient, more united.	It is not clear what exactly is meant by 'stronger'.		Discuss
15	AM-46-1	Miljöpartiet de gröna	We welcome the conclusions of the Conference on the Future of Europe and the clear ambition that citizens have shown to move Europe towards a green, social	<b>From line 44 to 46:</b>  We <del>welcome the</del> <del>do in general</del> <del>welcome the</del> conclusions of the Conference on the Future of Europe and the clear ambition that citizens have shown to move Europe towards a green, social	We welcome the conclusions in general, but not all of them.		Discuss
16	AM-55-1	Partido Ecologista a Os Verdes	Democratic changes like the end of unanimity, i.e. the abolition of vetoes, the introduction of transnational lists, the strengthening of transparency in decision-making, and a broader right of access to	<b>Delete from line 54 to 56:</b>  Democratic changes like the end of unanimity, i.e. <del>the abolition of vetoes</del> , the introduction of transnational lists, the strengthening of transparency in decision-making, and a broader right of access to			Discuss

17	AM-55-2	Vihreät - De Gröna	Democratic changes like the end of unanimity, i.e. the abolition of vetoes, the introduction of transnational lists, the strengthening of	<b>From line 54 to 55:</b>  <del>Demoeeratie</del> <a href="#">Introducing democratic</a> changes like the end of unanimity, i.e. the abolition of vetoes, the introduction of transnational lists, the strengthening of	Almost half of the points in the list start with a verb. This is just to make them uniform and this way the text flows better.		Accept
18	AM-56-1	Miljöpartiet de gröna	Democratic changes like the end of unanimity, i.e. the abolition of vetoes, the introduction of transnational lists, the strengthening of transparency in decision-making, and a broader right of access to	<b>Delete from line 54 to 56:</b>  Democratic changes like the end of unanimity, i.e. the abolition of vetoes, <del>the introduction of transnational lists</del> , the strengthening of transparency in decision-making, and a broader right of access to	We see the introduction of transnational lists of moving the choice of candidates further from citizens, instead of closer. To the extent that the election platform the transnational candidates are to campaign on differs from the national platforms, it can create confusion on the part of voters as to what they are voting for.		Discuss
19	AM-56-2	EGP Committee	Democratic changes like the end of unanimity, i.e. the abolition of vetoes, the introduction of transnational lists, the strengthening of transparency in decision-making, and a broader right of access to	<b>Insert from line 54 to 56:</b>  Democratic changes like the end of unanimity, i.e. the abolition of vetoes, <a href="#">right of legislative initiative for the EP</a> , the introduction of transnational lists, the strengthening of transparency in decision-making, and a broader right of access to	reflecting the most recent debates and developments		accept (included in the COFE conclusions)
20	AM-58-1	Miljöpartiet de gröna	transparency in decision-making, and a broader right of access to documents, in particular in Council;	<b>Insert from line 56 to 57:</b>  transparency in decision-making, and a broader right of access to documents, in particular in Council; <a href="#">in addition to the right to take legal action against Council decisions that violate EU law, in accordance with the Århus Convention;</a>	The EU as such has signed on the the Århus Convention, which includes the right to legal access for environmental decisions. The Århus Directive gives environmental civil society organisations the right to appeal environmental decisions to court, and the ECJ enforces this on the national level. However, there is no corresponding right to appeal Council decisions, e.g. on fisheries quotas in violation of the CFP. Note: We have not yet double-checked to see if this is included in the CoFoE proposals. Further, it could instead be added at the end of line 73.		not in the final recommendations
21	AM-59-1	Miljöpartiet de gröna	Independence from oil and gas imports by replacing them with renewable energies by Speeding up the green transition, in particular through more European investments;	<b>From line 58 to 60:</b>  Independence from <del>gas and</del> oil and <del>gas</del> <a href="#">nuclear related</a> imports by replacing them with <del>renewable energies</del> <a href="#">renewables</a> by Speeding up the green transition, in particular through more European investments;	It is important to break nuclear dependence on Russia and China. There is a risk that some countries will choose to even increase this dependence by replacing fossil fuels with nuclear power. Note: We have not yet double-checked to see if this is included in the CoFoE proposals.		not in the final recommendations
22	AM-59-2	Vihreät - De Gröna	Independence from oil and gas imports by replacing them with renewable energies by Speeding up the green transition, in particular through more European investments;	<b>From line 58 to 60:</b>  <del>Independence</del> <a href="#">Accomplishing independence</a> from oil and gas imports by replacing them with renewable energies by <del>S</del> <a href="#">speeding</a> up the green transition, in particular through more European investments;	Almost half of the points in the list start with a verb. This amendment is just to make the points uniform. This way the text flows better.		Accept

23	AM-61-1	Bündnis 90/Die Grünen	European investments;	<p><b>Insert after line 60:</b></p> <p><a href="#">Reform of the European fiscal rules, which are the baseline for the livelihood of millions of European citizens, and a functioning and prosperous economy. The stability and growth pact must function for all countries and provide the necessary tools and means to invest in decarbonization, digitalization, good labour, an affordable health system, security and clean energy systems, etc. Our common European fiscal and economic framework must work for the people and be democratic. Modernizing our fiscal rules is also a necessity to strengthen European sovereignty, and the ability to act and to further strengthen the international role of the euro.</a></p>			discuss / citizens recommendation are in line with the AM
24	AM-62-1	Vihreät - De Gröna	Right to affordable energy, to access to the internet, to minimum social standards, including minimum pensions, access to social housing when	<p><b>From line 61 to 62:</b></p> <p><del>Right</del><a href="#">Guaranteeing the right</a> to affordable energy, to access to the internet, to minimum social standards, including minimum pensions, access to social housing when</p>	Almost half of the points in the list start with a verb. This amendment is just to make the points uniform. This way the text flows better.		Accept
25	AM-69-1	Vihreät - De Gröna	Guaranteeing that large companies should be taxed properly, tax havens in the EU should be abolished;	<p><b>Insert from line 68 to 69:</b></p> <p>Guaranteeing that large companies should be taxed properly, <a href="#">and striving towards that</a> tax havens in the EU should be abolished;</p>	The sentences did not flow well together and the second sentence seemed to be missing a part of it?		discuss
26	AM-70-1	Vihreät - De Gröna	the EU should be abolished;The Rule of Law should be protected more effectively, including by making the EU Charter of Fundamental Rights universally applicable and	<p><b>From line 69 to 71:</b></p> <p><a href="#">Securing the more effective protection of</a> The Rule of Law <del>should be protected more effectively</del>, including by making the EU Charter of Fundamental Rights universally applicable and</p>	Almost half of the points in the list start with a verb. This amendment is just to make the points uniform. This way the text flows better.		Accept
27	AM-73-1	Vihreät - De Gröna	enforceable;European Trade agreements with third countries should be in line with the Paris Agreement and address serious human rights issues. Trade should	<p><b>From line 72 to 74:</b></p> <p><a href="#">Making sure that</a> European Trade agreements with third countries <del>should beare</del> in line with the Paris Agreement and address serious human rights issues. Trade should</p>	Almost half of the points in the list start with a verb. This amendment is just to make the points uniform. This way the text flows better.		Accept
28	AM-80-1	Europe Ecologie - Les Verts	created innovative tools for citizens' participation and for inclusive deliberation. It has demonstrated that building more democratic and accountable institutions requires the introduction of new instruments for the participation	<p><b>From line 78 to 80:</b></p> <p>created innovative tools for citizens' participation and for inclusive deliberation. It has demonstrated that building more democratic <del>and</del>, accountable <a href="#">and effective</a> institutions requires the introduction of new instruments for the participation</p>	It is important to highlight that participation plays a key role in producing successful solutions to common challenges. Not only is the decision-making process more open, but the practical results are better than when EU officials work in isolation.		Accept

29	AM-83-1	Federation of Young European Greens	of citizens in EU decision-making. As the Conference on the Future of Europe nears its end, the European Greens:	<b>Insert from line 81 to 83:</b> of citizens in EU decision-making. <a href="#">We welcome the Conference's efforts to engage young people directly in its activities. However, it is important this input is not forgotten. Youth engagement must not be a superficial act or void of political power but rather the EU must continue to engage young people directly into its democratic processes and held accountable to this. Young people are not the "next generation" but are here now.</a>	The CoFoE had a heavy emphasis on youth involvement, but the European Greens must commit to seeing that it is not youth-washing		Accept
30	AM-84-1	Greens/EFA Group in the European Parliament	As the Conference on the Future of Europe nears its end, the European Greens:	<b>From line 82 to 83:</b> As the Conference on the Future of Europe <del>nears</del> <a href="#">concluded</a> its <del>end</del> <a href="#">work</a> , the European Greens:			Accept
31	AM-84-2	EGP Committee	As the Conference on the Future of Europe nears its end, the European Greens:	<b>From line 82 to 83:</b> As the Conference on the Future of Europe <del>nears</del> <a href="#">concluded</a> its <del>end</del> <a href="#">work</a> , the European Greens:	reflecting the latest developments		AM-84-1 and AM-84-2 are the same
32	AM-86-1	Miljöpartiet de gröna	Call on all responsible institutions, including national governments, to deliver by following up on the clear demands posed by the Conference.	<b>Delete from line 84 to 85:</b> Call on all responsible institutions, including national governments, to deliver by following up on <del>the</del> -clear demands posed by the Conference.	We do not support implementing all demands.		Discuss
33	AM-87-1	Miljöpartiet de gröna	Call on all relevant actors to approve the reform of the European electoral law and fully implement it in time to establish a transnational constituency and draw up transnational lists in the 2024 European elections.	<b>Delete from line 86 to 89:</b> <del>Call on all relevant actors to approve the reform of the European electoral law and fully implement it in time to establish a transnational constituency and draw up transnational lists in the 2024 European elections.</del>	We oppose transnational lists as moving decision-making further from the control and scrutiny of citizens.		Discuss
34	AM-89-1	Greens/EFA Group in the European Parliament	electoral law and fully implement it in time to establish a transnational constituency and draw up transnational lists in the 2024 European elections.	<b>Insert from line 87 to 89:</b> electoral law and fully implement it in time to establish a transnational constituency and draw up transnational <a href="#">and gender-balanced</a> lists in the 2024 European elections.			Accept

35	AM-90-1	Europa Verde - Verdi	elections.	<p><b>Insert after line 89:</b></p> <p><a href="#">Call on for regular conferences on the future of Europe to systematically involve European citizens in policy decisions at the European level. The frequency and regularity of these conferences must be established and decided in a clear and repetitive manner.</a></p>			discuss / the idea is in line with past positions taken by EGP and by GGEP, could maybe reworded a bit (calls for a permanent citizens' participation mechanism at EU level in order to allow, in a systematic way, their involvement in key policy decisions)
36	AM-90-2	Bündnis 90/Die Grünen	elections.	<p><b>Insert after line 89:</b></p> <p><a href="#">Call on all responsible institutions, especially national governments, and on all relevant actors to make sure the conference on the future of Europe will lead to a constituent convention aiming to develop a federal European republic, based on the Charter of the Fundamental rights.</a></p>			Accept
37	AM-91-1	Die Grünen	As numerous demands require Treaty change to be implemented, call on the European Parliament to use Article 48 of the Treaty on the European Union to start a Treaty change procedure via a European Convention and call on	<p><b>From line 90 to 92:</b></p> <p><del>As numerous demands require Treaty change to be implemented, call on the European Parliament</del>  <a href="#">We welcome the European Parliament call</a> to use Article 48 of the Treaty on the European Union to start a Treaty change procedure via a European Convention and call on</p>	This text is not up-to-date, the EP has already spoken out in favor of a Convention.		See AM-91-2 (38)
38	AM-91-2	Bündnis 90/Die Grünen	As numerous demands require Treaty change to be implemented, call on the European Parliament to use Article 48 of the Treaty on the European Union	<p><b>Insert from line 90 to 91:</b></p> <p>As numerous demands require Treaty change to be implemented, <a href="#">call on EU Member States to support a Treaty Change and call</a> the European Parliament to use Article 48 of the Treaty on the European Union</p>			COMP 37/38 proposal :As numerous demands require Treaty change to be implemented, welcomes the European Parliament readiness to trigger Article 48 procedure, call for on the European Parliament to swiftly activate it in order to start the Treaty change procedure via a European Convention and call on the EU Member States to support it.
39	AM-95-1	Miljöpartiet de gröna	Commit to base our work in our common manifesto for the 2024 European elections on the demands formulated by the citizens in the Conference on the Future of Europe.	<p><b>Delete from line 94 to 96:</b></p> <p><del>Commit to base our work in our common manifesto for the 2024 European elections on the demands formulated by the citizens in the Conference on the Future of Europe.</del></p>	As we are opposed to some of the demands and not convinced of the legitimacy of the process it is premature to now commit to base our common manifesto on this document.		discuss

40	AM-95-2	Groen	Commit to base our work in our common manifesto for the 2024 European elections on the demands formulated by the citizens in the Conference on the Future of Europe.	<b>From line 94 to 96:</b> <del>Commit to base our work in</del> <a href="#">in</a> our common manifesto for the 2024 European elections <del>on the</del> <a href="#">EGP will take up a leading role in providing an answer to</a> demands formulated by the citizens in the Conference on the Future of Europe.	To make clear that the Manifesto will not only be based on demands of the Conference.		accept
41	AM-98-1	Miljöpartiet de gröna	Call on all Greens elected at the local, regional, national or European level to implement the conclusions of the Conference on the Future of Europe wherever they have the capacity to do so, and to actively	<b>From line 97 to 99:</b> Call on all Greens elected at the local, regional, national or <del>European level</del> <a href="#">European level</a> to implement <del>the</del> <a href="#">relevant</a> conclusions of the Conference on the Future of Europe wherever they have the capacity to do so, and to actively	We cannot commit to work to implement all conclusions from CoFoE		discuss
42	AM-101-1	Miljöpartiet de gröna	Europe wherever they have the capacity to do so, and to actively communicate on its conclusions to provide support, understanding and ownership across the electorate.	<b>Delete from line 99 to 101:</b> Europe wherever they have the capacity to do so, and to actively communicate on its conclusions to provide <del>support,</del> understanding and ownership across the electorate.	We cannot commit to work to provide support for all conclusions. This is tantamount to the EGP deciding that all Greens on the local, regional and national levels advocate for some positions that we are fundamentally opposed to. It risks provoking a backlash against the EU and thereby being counterproductive.		discuss
43	AM-101-2	Europe Ecologie - Les Verts	Europe wherever they have the capacity to do so, and to actively communicate on its conclusions to provide support, understanding and ownership across the electorate.	<b>Insert from line 99 to 101:</b> Europe wherever they have the capacity to do so, and to actively communicate on its <a href="#">process and</a> conclusions to provide support, understanding and ownership across the electorate.	As part of this communication strategy, it would be valuable to explain to the electorate how these conclusions were shaped, highlighting the fact that they are the product of an innovative and inclusive process.		accept